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MEMORANDUM 

 
DATE:  September 4, 2024 
 
TO:  Board of Representatives 
 
FROM:  Benjamin Barnes, Director of Administration 
 
CC: Planning Board 

Board of Finance 
Caroline Simmons, Mayor 

 
RE: Final Report – Discontinuance of a portion of Garden Street in Stamford 

(between Dock Street and Manhattan Street) 
 
As required under Section C8-60-4 of the Charter, I conducted a public hearing on August 20, 
2024 at 1:00 p.m. in connection with the discontinuance of a portion of Garden Street in Stamford 
(between Dock Street and Manhattan Street).  Subsequent to the public hearing the Director of 
Administration is required to make a report, in writing, to the Board of Representatives of the 
probable cost of the discontinuance and the damages and benefits which should be assessed in 
favor of, or against any affected properties.  

 
Notice of said hearing had been published in the Stamford Advocate on August 7, 2024; August 
8, 2024 and August 9, 2024. Specific notice of said public hearing had been provided to affected 
parties.   
 
The following specially noticed entities attended and made the following remarks: 
 
Frank Steinegger 
Mr. Steinegger expressed support for the proposal to discontinue Garden Street on behalf of all 
of the members of SMTG which incorporates the Manhattan Street block.  They wholeheartedly 
support the proposal. He commended the City on providing a comprehensive package that clearly 
illustrates the benefits for both the City of Stamford and the residents of Stamford. 
 
Bill Janocha 
Mr. Janocha, whose family owns property on the street in question, supported the discontinuance 
of the road. He mentioned that the area has been neglected, becoming a dumping ground and 
that the discontinuance would be a positive step forward. He emphasized that the area requires 
remediation and that redevelopment would benefit the City, potentially increasing tax revenue. 
 
Barbara Czescik 
Ms. Czescik attempted to speak but faced technical difficulties with her audio. She submitted a 
written document in favor of the discontinuance prior to the meeting which is attached to and 
included as part of this report. 
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The following member of the public made the following remarks: 
 
Susan Halpern 
Ms. Halpern, who lives in the South End, inquired about the financial benefits the City might 
receive from the property. Ben Barnes responded by directing her to the City website to view the 
Mayor’s Report that includes a recommended assessment of $1,036,000 against adjoining 
property owners based on an appraisal of the property.  Ms. Halpern also asked about the extent 
of contamination or remediation required on the property, but Mr. Barnes did not have specific 
information about that because the purpose of the hearing was to address the roadway. 
 
Recommended Benefit Assessment 
 
Following the hearing, I have conducted a final review of the proposed discontinuance and 
conclude that no changes are warranted to my August 5, 2024 report to the Mayor regarding the 
above-referenced proposed discontinuance and that the assessment of benefits as originally 
proposed is appropriate and fair to the City. 
 
The adjoining property owners, Rodriguez, Csezik, Steinegger and Morabito have represented to 
the City that they are part of a voluntary agreement among all the owners of land within the blocks 
bounded by Dock, Atlantic, Manhattan and Pacific Streets, known at the Stamford Manhattan 
Transit Group (SMTG).  At the recommendation of the Corporation Counsel, the City may levy 
the benefit assessment against SMTG, or against the adjoining property owners in proportion to 
their respective frontage on the block of Garden Street to be discontinued. In either event, the 
adjoining property owners or SMTG must acknowledge and accept responsibility for the removal 
of public utilities and any public facilities within the discontinued roadway prior to the issue of any 
development permits for the location. 
 
 
Attachments: Correspondence received related to the proposed discontinuance. 










